#### **TERMS & CONDITIONS**

Members will not sell, distribute, rent, or lease in whole or in part to any third-party, copy, prepare derivative works based on, or publicly perform or display the policies and procedures. For further information, please read the terms and conditions below (also located on the My Wipfli membership website) before using Wipfli LLP's sample policies and procedures.



<u>Editor's Note</u>: The sample policies and procedures included herein should only be used as a guide in developing policies and procedures applicable to your particular organization. Users should carefully read the accompanying instructions and eliminate, add to, or modify these policies and procedures as necessary to customize them.

Your Organization must determine the policies and procedures that are appropriate for its governance and operational practices that help ensure sound business practices and compliance. The inclusion of a sample policy or procedure in this manual does not mean it should be included in your Organization's manual.

These sample policies and procedures are copyrighted materials of Wipfli LLP. My Wipfli members are authorized to use these materials only for their member organization. Additional uses for multiple organizations or any other copying, reselling, or redistribution of these policies and procedures is expressly prohibited.

<u>Editor's Note:</u> If you currently use a Wipfli LLP sample manual and are reviewing a Wipfli LLP updated version, we recommend comparing your manual with this revised/ updated manual in its entirety, not just comparing the changes highlighted in this sample manual. In some cases, portions of a policy or an entire policy may have been removed to bring the manual current; in these instances, the changes may not be indicated.

<u>Editor's Notes</u> should be deleted from the final version of your Organization's adopted manual.

<u>Editor's Note</u>: Throughout the manual are sections noted as "MUST". This is to alert the user that policies and/or procedures for these topics are required in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 [45 CFR Part 75] (Uniform Guidance), other regulation, statute, or guidance. Please ensure your final edited manual includes policies and/or procedures for these topics. Your Organization is responsible for determining the appropriate adoption of policy and procedure wording; the wording in this sample manual is a guide only.

<u>Editor's Note:</u> This sample document includes updates resulting from changes to the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), which is the source of authoritative generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The full codification is available on the FASB website at https://asc.fasb.org for no charge (Basic View). We recommend reviewing the current ASC's, and consider consulting with your external auditor, to ensure your Organization is adopting the codification appropriately in your financial policies and procedures.

<u>Editor's Note:</u> These sample policies and procedures include changes based on Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Updates. It is the responsibility of each entity to determine which updates are in effect for its entity and to determine the appropriate wording for its adopted policies and procedures.

<u>Editor's Note:</u> Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200) reference changes are noted throughout the sample manual. These reference changes are not effective in Uniform Guidance until November 12, 2020.

The updates do not apply to current grants but would apply to modifications and new grant after November 12, 2020

## SAMPLE ORGANIZATION

Accounting & Financial Policies and Procedures Manual

#### **INSTRUCTIONS**

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS – AUTOMATIC**

This document contains two types of Table of Contents (TOC); one that is automatically generated based on the document's formatted settings and another that is manually created. Please select the TOC that will work for your organization and delete the other.

If the automatic TOC is used, your Organization can edit or remove sample policies in this document and the TOC will update when the update button is clicked (see below). If the title/heading formatting of a policy section or individual policy is changed or removed, the automatic TOC will not generate properly. In this instance, please use the correct title/heading formatting or use the manual TOC and edit as appropriate.

To update the automatic TOC, click anywhere on the TOC near its top (see print screen below) and click on the Update Table button.

	💈 📄 🗸 📑 Update Table
-	Table∙of∙Contents
	GENERAL·POLICIES

The automatic TOC document is generated using the Microsoft Word Table of Contents feature located here:



If a heading is not included in the automatic TOC, on the Home tab of the ribbon, make sure the proper Style has been applied to the text.



#### **HEADING 1**

HEADING 2 Heading 3

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

TERMS & CONDITIONS
INSTRUCTIONS
INTRODUCTIONERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED Effective Date(s) of Accounting and Financial Policies Error! Bookmark no defined.
[Fiscal] Year-End of OrganizationError! Bookmark not defined Basis of AccountingBasis of Accounting Accounting SoftwareBasis SoftwareBrror! Bookmark not defined
GENERAL POLICIES
not defined. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST - MUSTERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED Overview of Conflicts of InterestError! Bookmark not defined Interested PersonsError! Bookmark not defined Understanding Conflict of InterestError! Bookmark not defined Organizational Conflicts of Interest –MUSTError! Bookmark not defined Honoraria AcceptanceError! Bookmark not defined Disclosure RequirementsError! Bookmark not defined Resolution of Conflicts of InterestError! Bookmark not defined Disclosure RequirementsError! Bookmark not defined Disclosure Requirements of InterestError! Bookmark not defined Disclosure Requirements of InterestError! Bookmark not defined Disciplinary Action for Violations of This Policy - MUSTError! Bookmark not defined.
POLICY ON SUSPECTED MISCONDUCT ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED Overview of Misconduct (Ethics, Fraud)Error! Bookmark not defined Definition of Misconduct

Reporting Procedures	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Whistleblower Protection	
Reporting Individual Protections	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Investigative Responsibilities	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Disciplinary Action	
Confidentiality	
Disclosure to Outside Parties	
SECURITY	
General Office Security	
Finance Department	
Access to Electronically Stored Accounting	
Storage of Sensitive Data	
Destruction of Consumer Information	Error! Bookmark not defined
GENERAL LEDGER AND CHART OF ACCC	INTS FRORIBOOKMARK NOT
DEFINED.	
Chart of Accounts Overview	Errorl Bookmark not defined
Distribution of Chart of Accounts	
Control of Chart of Accounts	
Accounting Estimates	
Journal Entries	
Reconciliation of Accounts	
Spreadsheet Management	
ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL AWARDS	
Definitions	
Preparation and Review of Proposals	
Post-Award Procedures	
Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and F	
not def	
Document Administration	
Closeout of Federal Awards	Error! Bookmark not defined.
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH REVENUES A	
BOOKMARK NOT	
REVENUE	
Definitions of Revenue	
Revenue Recognition Policies	
Distinguishing Contributions from Exchange	
defin	
COST SHARING AND MATCHING (IN-KIND	
CONDITIONS	
Overview of Cost Sharing or Matching	Errorl Bookmark not defined
Documentation	
Valuation and Accounting Treatment of In-	
defin	
GIFT ACCEPTANCE	
Overview of Gift Acceptance Policies	

Categories of Gifts Gift Acceptance Procedures CONTRIBUTIONS ACCOUNTING Donor Privacy Valuation of Noncash (In-kind) Contributions Receipt of Donations Procedure Receipts, Acknowledgements, and Disclosures Endowment Funds Received Fundraising Events, Special Events State Registrations Online Contributions Disclosures of Promises to Give/ Pledges BILLING/ INVOICING/ REIMBURSEMENT REQUES BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.	Error! Bookmark not defined. R! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Overview of Billing/Invoicing	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Responsibilities for Billing/Invoicing [Request for	
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Billing/Invoicing [Request for Reimbursement] and	
Bookmark not defi	
Cash Drawdowns of Advances of Federal Funds	
defined.	
Classification of Revenue	Frror! Bookmark not defined.
Accounts Receivable Entry Policies	Error! Bookmark not defined
RECEIPTSERRO	
Overview of Receipts	
Processing of Funds Received	
Endorsement of Checks	
Timeliness of Bank Deposits	
Online Receipts	
Reconciliation of Cash and Check Deposits	
RECEIVABLE MANAGEMENT	
Grants Receivable Management	
Accounts Receivable Management	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Credits and Other Adjustments to Receivables	
Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts [OR] Direc	
Collections	
Receivable Write-Off Authorization Procedures	Error! Bookmark not defined.
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH EXPENDITURES AN	D DISBURSEMENTS ERROR!
BOOKMARK NOT DEFIN	IED.
PROCUREMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES DEFINED.	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT
Overview of Procurement	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Responsibility for Purchasing	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Ennant Dealanants not defined

Code of Conduct in Purchasing - MUST.....Error! Bookmark not defined.

Competition	.Error! Bookmark not defined.
Nondiscrimination Policy	.Error! Bookmark not defined.
Procurement Thresholds and Authorization Limits .	.Error! Bookmark not defined.
Procurement Procedures -MUST	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Sealed Bid Method of Procurement	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Proposal Method of Procurement	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Solicitation for Procurements -MUST	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Advertising Procedures for Procurement	.Error! Bookmark not defined.
Extension of Due Dates and Receipt of Late Offers	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Evaluation of Alternative Proposers -MUST	.Error! Bookmark not defined.

Affirmative Consideration of Minority, Small Business, Women-Owned Businesses, and Labor Surplus Area Firms......Error! Bookmark not defined. Non Competitive Method of Procurement (Sole Source)...... Error! Bookmark not

#### defined.

Procurement Grievance Procedures	
Pre-Qualified Contractors	
Bonding Requirements	
Use of Purchase Orders	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Blanket Purchase Orders	
Verification of New Contractor	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Contractor Files and Required Documenta	ation Error! Bookmark not defined.
Contractor Master File Maintenance	
Receipt and Acceptance of Goods	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Contract Administration	
Contract Provisions	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Right to Audit Clause	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Availability of Procurement Records	
Procurement Records	Error! Bookmark not defined.
SUBAWARD MANAGEMENT	
Making Subawards	
Monitoring of Subrecipients	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Negotiating Indirect Cost Rates	Error! Bookmark not defined.
POLITICAL INTERVENTION	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Prohibited Expenditures	
Endorsements of Candidates	
Individual vs. Organization Activities	
Prohibited Use of Organization Assets and	
defir	
LOBBYING	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Overview of Lobbying	
Definition of Lobbying Activities	
Segregation of Lobbying Expenditures	

# CHARGING COSTS TO FEDERAL AWARDS ...... ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.

Overview of Charging Costs to Federal Awards ...... Error! Bookmark not defined.

Cost Allocation Plan Policy Direct Costs Shared Costs Joint Costs Indirect Costs Direct Costing Procedures Indirect Cost Rate Segregating Unallowable from Allowable Costs	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANAGEMENT ER Overview of Accounts Payable Management	ROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Recording of Accounts Payable	
Accounts Payable Cutoff	
Preparation of a [Voucher Package]	
Processing of [Voucher Packages]	
Invoice Approval	
Payment Discounts	
Employee Expense Reports/ Employee Reimb	oursements Error! Bookmark not
defined.	
Relocation Cost Reimbursement-MUST, if offe	ered as an employee benefit Error!
Bookmark not d	
Reconciliation of A/P Subsidiary Ledger to Ger	neral Ledger Error! Bookmark not
defined.	
TRAVEL – MUST, IF COSTS WILL BE CHARGE	ED TO GRANTS ERROR!
BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.	
Travel Advances	
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. , if offered as an employee benefit
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. , if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. , if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. , if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONESER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. , if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. ROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONESER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. ROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. , if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. ROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. , if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES ER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES ER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones Use of Cell Phones While Driving	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONESER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones Use of Cell Phones While Driving Camera Phones	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Frror! Bookmark not defined. if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES CELL PHONES ER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones Use of Cell Phones While Driving Camera Phones Personal Cell Phones or Similar Devices at We	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. ; if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES CELL PHONES ER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones Use of Cell Phones While Driving Camera Phones Personal Cell Phones or Similar Devices at We DISBURSEMENT POLICIESER	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES ER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones Use of Cell Phones While Driving Camera Phones Personal Cell Phones or Similar Devices at We	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. if offered as an employee benefit Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONES ER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones Use of Cell Phones While Driving Camera Phones Personal Cell Phones or Similar Devices at We DISBURSEMENT POLICIESER General Disbursement Policies [Manual] Disbursement Approval	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Frror! Bookmark not defined. Frror! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.
Employee and Director Business Travel Travel Expense Report Preparation Reasonableness of Travel Costs Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel CELL PHONESER Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones Cell Phone Use Cell Phone Plans Revocation of Organization Cell Phones Employee Cell Phones Use of Cell Phones While Driving Camera Phones Personal Cell Phones or Similar Devices at Wo DISBURSEMENT POLICIESER General Disbursement Policies	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Frror! Bookmark not defined. Frror! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined.

Use of Positive Pay System Mailing of Checks Voided Checks and Stop Payments Recordkeeping Associated with Independe <b>defin</b>	Error! Bookmark not defined. Error! Bookmark not defined. Ent Contractors Error! Bookmark not
CREDIT CARDS/ PURCHASING CARDS/ C	
BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.	
Organization-Issued Credit Cards or Purch	nasing Cards Error! Bookmark not
defin	-
Sales Tax	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Card User Responsibilities	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Revocation of Organization Credit Cards of	
not de	fined.
Employee Credit Cards PAYROLL AND RELATED POLICIES	Error! Bookmark not defined.
PAYROLL AND RELATED POLICIES	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Compensation – Personal Services -MUS	TError! Bookmark not defined.
Compensation – Fringe Benefits -MUST	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Classification of Workers as Independent	
Bookmark n	
Wage Comparability Study	
Review and Approval of Senior Manageme defin	
Payroll Administration	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Changes in Payroll Data	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Payroll Taxes	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Standards of Documentation for Personne	
not de	
Preparation of Time Records	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Processing of Timesheets	
Review of Payroll	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Distribution of Payroll	
Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)– MUS Bookmark n	
Internal Audit of Payroll Data	
POLICIES PERTAINING TO SPECIFIC ASSET	
CASH AND CASH MANAGEMENT	
Cash and Cash Equivalents	
Cash Accounts	
Authorized Disbursement Signers	
Digital Signatures	
Bank Reconciliations	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Cash Flow Management	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Unpresented Checks	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Petty Cash	Error! Bookmark not defined.

Wire Transfore	Error! Bookmark not defined.
INVENTORY OF MATERIALS	ERRORI BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Contributed Inventory	Error! Bookmark not defined.
PREPAID EXPENSES	
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
INVESTMENT POLICIES	
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Procedures and Reporting	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	iesError! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Investment Expenses	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
CAPITAL ASSETS	
Capitalization Policy	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	sError! Bookmark not defined.
	vital Asset Listing Error! Bookmark not
	ned.
Receipt of Newly Purchased Equipment	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Depreciation and Useful Lives	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS	
Acquisition of Intangible Assets	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Accounting for Intangible Assets	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Amortization	Error! Bookmark not defined.
ASSET IMPAIRMENTS	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Policy	Error! Bookmark not defined.
FAIR VALUE ACCOUNTING	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.
	Error! Bookmark not defined.

POLICIES PERTAINING TO SPECIFIC LIAE	BILITY AND NET ASSET ACCOUNTS ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
ACCRUED LIABILITIES	
Identification of Liabilities	
FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS	
General Policy	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Credit Cards and Charge Accounts	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Operating Line of Credit	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Term Loans	
Recordkeeping	
Accounting and Classification	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Non-Interest-Bearing Notes Payable	Error! Bookmark not defined.
INCOME TAXES PAYABLE	
Accrual of Income Taxes	
Income Tax Positions	
LEASES	
Classification of Leases - Lessee	
Reasonableness of Leases	
Accounting for Leases	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Changes in Lease Terms	Error! Bookmark not defined.
NET ASŠETS	
Classification of Net Assets	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Composition of Net Assets	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Reclassification of Net Assets	
Disclosures	
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL A BOOKMARK NOT	
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Standard Financial Statements of the Orga	
Frequency of Preparation	
Review and Distribution	
Monthly Distribution	
Annual Financial Statements	
Trend Analysis	Error! Bookmark not defined.
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINAI BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.	
Consolidation Policy	Error! Bookmark not defined.
GOVERNMENT RETURNS	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Overview	
Filing of Returns	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Review of Form 990 by Board of Directors	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Public Access to Information Returns	
OTHER TAX CONSIDERATIONS	

State and Local Property, Sales, Use & Inc defin	
State Charity Registrations TRANSACTIONS WITH INTERESTED PERS	Error! Bookmark not defined. SONS AND RELATED PARTIES ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Definitions Identification of Interested Persons or Rela defin	ated Parties Error! Bookmark not
Record of Transactions with Interested Pe	rsons and Related-Parties Error!
Bookmark n	
UNRELATED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES	
Identification and Classification	
Allocation of Expenses to Unrelated Activity	
Reporting	Error! Bookmark not denned.
JOINT VENTURES	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
BUDGETING	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Overview of Budgeting	
Preparation and Adoption	
Monitoring Performance	
Budget and Program Revisions	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Budget Modifications	Error! Bookmark not defined.
OPERATING RESERVES	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Purpose	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Establishment and Calculation	
Funding of Reserves	
Use of Reserves	
Reporting and Monitoring	
ANNUAL AUDIT	
Arranging for the Annual Audit	
Auditor Independence	
How Often to Review the Selection of the Information to provide in Audit Request for	
defin	
Selecting an Independent Financial Staten	
defin	
Preparing for the Annual Audit	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Concluding the Audit	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Audit Adjustments	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Internal Control Deficiencies Noted During defin	
[Board of Directors or Audit Committee] Co	
Bookmark n	
INSURANCE	
Overview of Insurance	

Insurance Definitions	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Coverage Guidelines	Error! Bookmark not defined.
RECORD RETENTION	ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
Record Retention Policy	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Exception for Investigations	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Protection of Records – Federal Matters.	Error! Bookmark not defined.

### TABLE OF CONTENTS – MANUAL

INTRODUCTION	1
Effective Date(s) of Accounting and Financial Policies	1
[Fiscal] Year-End of Organization	2
Basis of Accounting	2
Accounting Software	2
GENERAL POLICIES	3
ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE	3
The Role of the Board of Directors	3
Board of Directors Audit Responsibilities	3
Board of Directors Committee Structure	4
Finance Committee Responsibilities	5
Audit Committee Responsibilities	5
The Roles of the [Executive Director] and Staff	6
FINANCE DEPARTMENT OVERVIEW	7
Organization Structure	7
Department Responsibilities	7
Standards for Financial Management Systems	8
INTERNAL CONTROLS	10
System of Internal Controls	10
BUSINESS CONDUCT	11
Practice of Ethical Behavior	11
Confidentiality Policy	11
Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Organization Policies	12
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST - MUST	12
Overview of Conflicts of Interest	13
Interested Persons	14
Understanding Conflict of Interest	14
Organizational Conflicts of Interest –MUST	15
Honoraria Acceptance	16
Disclosure Requirements	16
Resolution of Conflicts of Interest	17
Disciplinary Action for Violations of This Policy - MUST	18
POLICY ON SUSPECTED MISCONDUCT	20
Overview of Misconduct (Ethics, Fraud)	20
Definition of Misconduct	20
Reporting Procedures	21
Whistleblower Protection	22
Reporting Individual Protections	22
Investigative Responsibilities	23

Disciplinary Action	24
Confidentiality	24
Disclosure to Outside Parties	25
SECURITY	26
General Office Security	26
Finance Department	26
Access to Electronically Stored Accounting Data	27
Storage of Sensitive Data	27
Destruction of Consumer Information	28
GENERAL LEDGER AND CHART OF ACCOUNTS	30
Chart of Accounts Overview	30
Distribution of Chart of Accounts	31
Control of Chart of Accounts	31
Accounting Estimates	31
Journal Entries	31
Reconciliation of Accounts	32
Spreadsheet Management	32
ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL AWARDS	34
Definitions	34
Preparation and Review of Proposals	34
Post-Award Procedures	35
Compliance with Laws, Regulations, and Provisions of Awards	35
Document Administration	36
Closeout of Federal Awards	37
	20
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH REVENUES AND CASH RECEIPTS	38
REVENUE Definitions of Devenue	38
Definitions of Revenue	38
Revenue Recognition Policies	39
Distinguishing Contributions from Exchange Transactions	43
COST SHARING AND MATCHING (IN-KIND)– MUST, IF REQUIRED BY GRANT	
CONDITIONS	45
Overview of Cost Sharing or Matching	45
Documentation	45
Valuation and Accounting Treatment of In-Kind or Matching	40
GIFT ACCEPTANCE	50
Overview of Gift Acceptance Policies	50
Categories of Gifts	50
Gift Acceptance Procedures	51
CONTRIBUTIONS ACCOUNTING	52
	JZ

Donor Privacy	52
Valuation of Noncash (In-kind) Contributions	53
Receipt of Donations Procedure	54
Receipts, Acknowledgements, and Disclosures	54
Endowment Funds Received	56
Fundraising Events, Special Events	57
State Registrations	59
Online Contributions	60
Disclosures of Promises to Give/ Pledges	60
BILLING/ INVOICING/ REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST POLICIES	62
Overview of Billing/Invoicing	62
Responsibilities for Billing/Invoicing [Request for	62
Reimbursement] and Collection	02
Billing/Invoicing [Request for Reimbursement] and Financial	62
Reporting	_
Cash Drawdowns of Advances of Federal Funds - MUST	63
Classification of Revenue	64
Accounts Receivable Entry Policies	66
RECEIPTS	67
Overview of Receipts	67
Processing of Funds Received	67
Endorsement of Checks	68
Timeliness of Bank Deposits	68
Online Receipts	69
Reconciliation of Cash and Check Deposits	69
RECEIVABLE MANAGEMENT	70
Grants Receivable Management	70
Accounts Receivable Management	70
Credits and Other Adjustments to Receivables	70
Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts [OR] Direct Write-off	70
Method of Bad Debt	
Collections	71
Receivable Write-Off Authorization Procedures	72
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH EXPENDITURES AND DISBURSEMENTS	73
PROCUREMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	73
Overview of Procurement	73
Responsibility for Purchasing	73
Code of Conduct in Purchasing - MUST	73
Competition	75
Nondiscrimination Policy	75
Procurement Thresholds and Authorization Limits	75

Procurement Procedures -MUST	82
Sealed Bid Method of Procurement	84
Proposal Method of Procurement	85
Solicitation for Procurements -MUST	85
Advertising Procedures for Procurement	86
Extension of Due Dates and Receipt of Late Offers	87
Evaluation of Alternative Proposers -MUST	87
Affirmative Consideration of Minority, Small Business, Women-	88
Owned Businesses, and Labor Surplus Area Firms	00
Non-Competitive Method of Procurement (Sole Source)	90
Procurement Grievance Procedures	90
Pre-Qualified Contractors	91
Bonding Requirements	91
Use of Purchase Orders	92
Blanket Purchase Orders	93
Verification of New Contractor	94
Contractor Files and Required Documentation	94
Contractor Master File Maintenance	95
Receipt and Acceptance of Goods	95
Contract Administration	96
Contract Provisions	97
Right to Audit Clause	98
Availability of Procurement Records	98
Procurement Records	99
SUBAWARD MANAGEMENT	100
Making Subawards	100
Monitoring of Subrecipients	102
Negotiating Indirect Cost Rates	102
POLITICAL INTERVENTION	103
Prohibited Expenditures	103
Endorsements of Candidates	103
Individual vs. Organization Activities	103
Prohibited Use of Organization Assets and Resources	103
LOBBYING	105
Overview of Lobbying	105
Definition of Lobbying Activities	105
Segregation of Lobbying Expenditures	105
Lobbying Election	105
CHARGING COSTS TO FEDERAL AWARDS	107
Overview of Charging Costs to Federal Awards	107
Criteria for Allowability of Costs -MUST	107

Cost Allocation Plan Policy	108
Direct Costs	108
Shared Costs	109
Joint Costs	110
Indirect Costs	110
Direct Costing Procedures	110
Indirect Cost Rate	111
Segregating Unallowable from Allowable Costs	112
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MANAGEMENT	113
Overview of Accounts Payable Management	113
Recording of Accounts Payable	113
Accounts Payable Cutoff	113
Preparation of a [Voucher Package]	114
Processing of [Voucher Packages]	114
Invoice Approval	114
Payment Discounts	115
Employee Expense Reports/ Employee Reimbursements	115
Relocation Cost Reimbursement-MUST, if offered as an	116
employee benefit	
Reconciliation of A/P Subsidiary Ledger to General Ledger	116
TRAVEL – MUST, IF COSTS WILL BE CHARGED TO GRANTS	118
Travel Advances	118
Employee and Director Business Travel	118
Travel Expense Report Preparation	118
Reasonableness of Travel Costs	120
Special Rules Pertaining to Air Travel	121
Temporary Dependent Care Costs – MUST, if offered as an	122
employee benefit	100
Spouse/Partner and Dependent Travel	123
CELL PHONES	124
Issuance of Organization-Owned Cell Phones	124
Cell Phone Use	124
Cell Phone Plans	125
Revocation of Organization Cell Phones	125
Employee Cell Phones	126
Use of Cell Phones While Driving	126
Camera Phones	126
Personal Cell Phones or Similar Devices at Work	127
DISBURSEMENT POLICIES	128
General Disbursement Policies	128
[Manual] Disbursement Approval	129

[Non-Manual or Electronic] Disbursement Approval	130
Use of Positive Pay System	130
Mailing of Checks	131
Voided Checks and Stop Payments	131
Recordkeeping Associated with Independent Contractors	131
CREDIT CARDS/ PURCHASING CARDS/ CHARGE ACCOUNTS	132
Organization-Issued Credit Cards or Purchasing Cards	132
Sales Tax	133
Card User Responsibilities	133
Revocation of Organization Credit Cards or Purchasing Cards	134
Employee Credit Cards	134
PAYROLL AND RELATED POLICIES	135
Compensation – Personal Services -MUST	135
Compensation – Fringe Benefits -MUST	135
Classification of Workers as Independent Contractors or	136
Employees	
Wage Comparability Study	136
Review and Approval of Senior Management Compensation	136
Payroll Administration	137
Changes in Payroll Data	138
Payroll Taxes	139
Standards of Documentation for Personnel Expenses - MUST	140
Preparation of Time Records	141
Processing of Timesheets	141
Review of Payroll	142
Distribution of Payroll	142
Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)– MUST, if required by a grant	142
Internal Audit of Payroll Data	143
POLICIES PERTAINING TO SPECIFIC ASSET ACCOUNTS	144
CASH AND CASH MANAGEMENT	144
Cash and Cash Equivalents	144
Cash Accounts	144
Authorized Disbursement Signers	145
Digital Signatures	145
Bank Reconciliations	145
Cash Flow Management	146
Unpresented Checks	147
Petty Cash	148
Wire Transfers	148
Cash Management	148

INVENTORY OF MATERIALS	150
Description of Inventory	150
Accounting for Inventory	150
Reserve for Obsolete Inventory	150
Physical Counts	150
Contributed Inventory	150
PREPAID EXPENSES	152
Accounting Treatment	152
Procedures	152
INVESTMENT POLICIES	153
Overview of Investments	153
Delegation of Authority	154
Accounting Treatment	154
Performance Goals	155
Procedures and Reporting	155
Accounting for Investments in Other Entities	156
Endowment Funds	156
Underwater Endowment Funds	158
Investment Expenses	159
Disclosures of Endowment Funds	159
CAPITAL ASSETS	161
Capitalization Policy	161
Contributed Assets	161
Release of Donor Restriction	161
Equipment Purchased with Federal Funds	162
Establishment and Maintenance of a Capital Asset Listing	162
Receipt of Newly Purchased Equipment	163
Depreciation and Useful Lives	163
Changes in Estimated Useful Lives	164
Repairs of Property and Equipment	164
Dispositions of Property and Equipment	165
Write-Offs of Property and Equipment	165
INTANGIBLE ASSETS	166
Acquisition of Intangible Assets	166
Accounting for Intangible Assets	166
Amortization	167
ASSET IMPAIRMENTS	168
Policy	168
FAIR VALUE ACCOUNTING	169
Scope	169
Disclosures	169

POLICIES PERTAINING TO SPECIFIC LIABILITY AND NET ASSET ACCOUNTS	170
ACCRUED LIABILITIES	170
Identification of Liabilities	170
Accrued Leave	170
FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS	171
General Policy	171
Credit Cards and Charge Accounts	171
Operating Line of Credit	171
Term Loans	171
Recordkeeping	172
Accounting and Classification	172
Non-Interest-Bearing Notes Payable	172
INCOME TAXES PAYABLE	174
Accrual of Income Taxes	174
Income Tax Positions	174
LEASES	176
Classification of Leases - Lessee	176
Reasonableness of Leases	176
Accounting for Leases	177
Changes in Lease Terms	177
NET ASSETS	178
Classification of Net Assets	178
Composition of Net Assets	178
Reclassification of Net Assets	179
Disclosures	179
POLICIES ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL AND TAX REPORTING	180
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	180
Standard Financial Statements of the Organization	180
Frequency of Preparation	181
Review and Distribution	182
Monthly Distribution	182
Annual Financial Statements	182
Trend Analysis	182
Required Disclosures	183
PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	184
Consolidation Policy	184
GOVERNMENT RETURNS	186
Overview	186
Filing of Returns	186
Review of Form 990 by Board of Directors	188

	400
Public Access to Information Returns	188
OTHER TAX CONSIDERATIONS	190
State and Local Property, Sales, Use & Income Taxes	190
State Charity Registrations	190
TRANSACTIONS WITH INTERESTED PERSONS AND RELATED	191
PARTIES	404
Definitions	191
Identification of Interested Persons or Related Parties	191
Record of Transactions with Interested Persons and Related-	192
	400
UNRELATED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES	193
Identification and Classification	193
Allocation of Expenses to Unrelated Activities	193
Reporting	193
JOINT VENTURES	195
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES	196
BUDGETING	196
Overview of Budgeting	196
Preparation and Adoption	196
Monitoring Performance	197
Budget and Program Revisions	197
Budget Modifications	198
OPERATING RESERVES	199
Purpose	199
Establishment and Calculation	199
Funding of Reserves	199
Use of Reserves	199
Reporting and Monitoring	199
ANNUAL AUDIT	201
Arranging for the Annual Audit	201
Auditor Independence	201
How Often to Review the Selection of the Auditor	202
Information to provide in Audit Request for Proposal	202
Selecting an Independent Financial Statement Auditor	202
Preparing for the Annual Audit	203
Concluding the Audit	204
	205
Audit Adjustments	
Internal Control Deficiencies Noted During the Audit	206
[Board of Directors or Audit Committee] Communications with	206
the Auditors INSURANCE	208
Overview of Insurance	
	208

Insurance Definitions	208
Coverage Guidelines	209
RECORD RETENTION	211
Record Retention Policy	212
Exception for Investigations	214
Protection of Records – Federal Matters	214